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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of M/s. Spur T:Bch nologies Private Limited

Report on Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s. Spur
Technologies Private Limitedf( "the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state oféaﬂ'airs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its Losses,
total Comprehensive Income, Changes in equity and its Cash Flow for the year ended on that
date. '

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,




including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accountsj Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate hnp!ementation and maintenance of accounting policies, making
judgments and estimates that are| reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal ﬁhancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemeflts, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicab le, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basiq' of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

|

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
| "

process. -

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in th$ aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher;than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 0T the override of

internal control.

e Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regﬁlatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) Inour opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e)

g)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Since the turnover of the company is less than Rupees 50 crores as per the latest
audited financial statements and borrowings from banks or financial institutions
or any body corporate at any point of time during the financial year is less than 25
Crores and has not committed a default in filing its financial statements under
section 137 of the companies act 2013 or annual report under section 92 of the
companies act 2013 with the registrar, the company is exempted from IFC
applicability, hence the same is not commented upon.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Audit Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which has impact on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or Kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and




vi.

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement,

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered

with.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of Act, the company has not paid any
remuneration to its directors during the year. The ministry of corporate affairs has not
prescribed other details under section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be

commented upon by us.

For B D Bansal& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No.00062 1N, &'
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Partner

M. No. : 089988
UDIN: 102 95 8¢ RKELFR L98E

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 20.0U . 222N



Annexure A" to the Independent Ailditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the ‘heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement'
of our report to the members of M/S. Spur Technologies Private Limited (“Company”) of even
date 1o the financial statements of the irCampany Jor the year ended March 31, 2024:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the company
and the books of accounts examined by us under the normal course of audit, we state that: -

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(i)

(iii)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets. '

(b) The company has a program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment so
to cover all the assets once every three years, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and nature of its assets, Pursuant to the programme, Property, Plant and
Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. '

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the company does not own or possess any immovable
properties(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee). Hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at
31* March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory; except goods-in-transit; in the custody of the company has been
physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by the
management were appropriate, No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets. Hence such
Clause is not commented upon.

The Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly; reparting
under clause 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable. 7
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The company has not made any ihvestments, given any loans or provided any guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have been informed that the company is not required to maintain the cost records
pursuant to the companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of statutory dues: -

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and
any other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

No undisputed amounts payaple in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31,
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become

payable.

(b) There are no dues of the Statutory Dues as referred to in clause (a) on account of any
dispute. '

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

()

payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

© The Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained.

(c) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company has
not raised any fund on short-term basis. Hence clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable to the

company.

(d) &(f)The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture and
accordingly the reporting under clause 3 (ix) () and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instrumentsj during the year and hence the reporting under clause 3
(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable. GPNSAy




(b) During the year, the compa:ny has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertil?le debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
and hence the reporting under clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable

(xi) (@) Considering the principle of materiality outlined in the standards on auditing no fraud
by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section EIZ] of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of
this report. '

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting under the clause 3 (xii) (a)
to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 with respect to the applicable transaction with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) The company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provisions of Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xiv) (a) and (b) isnot applicable.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence the provisions of the section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(xvi) (a) & (b) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a)-(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d)The Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 381.06 lacs in the current financial year and
Rs. 385.15 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.
Hence, this clause is not commented upon.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans an edon

O ()
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(xx)

our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is pot capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the company for
the year under consideration. Hence, the reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a)-(b) of the Order
is not commented upon.

For B D Bansal& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No.000621

{
(Anil Kumar Gupta)
Partner Place: Ludhiana
M. No.: 089988 Date: S© .oy 2024
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U35990HR2014PTCO74086

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2024
{All amounts in 2 Lakh's unless stated otherwise)
Asat Asat

NOS  Mar3n 2024 March31, 202
A Assets
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,167.21 2.183.81
(b} Right of use Assets 3 371.00 382.97
(c) Capital-Work-in-Progress 3 21177 76.42
(d) Intangible assets 4 5512 59.86
() Financial Assets
{1} Investment 5 5.00 5.00
(f) Cther Non-Current Assets 7 3481 3378
Total Non-Current Assets 2,844.92 2,741.84
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 168.80 420.67
(b) Financial Assets
(I} Trade Receivables 9 85.93 153.05
(1} Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 366.09 -
(111} Other financial assets 11 19.03 68.13
(c} Current Tax Assets BA 165 6.23
(d) Other Current Assets 12 282.52 234.82
Total Current Assets 924.03 882.91
Total Assets 3,768.95 3,624.74
B Equity and Liabilities
1 Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital 13 3,081.00 1.00
(b) Other Equity 14 (816.20) (253.00)
Total Equity 2,264.80 (252.00)
2 Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(I} Borrowings 15 735.77 1,103.66
{Il) Lease Liabilities 16 - 142.22
(b) Provisions 17 15.86 22.20
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 57.09 29.06
Total Non- Current Liabilities 808.72 1,297.15
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabllities
(Il Borrowings 19 367.89 1,806.54
{la) Lease Liabilities 20 142.22 130.54
(1) Trade Payables 21
a) Total Outstanding dues of Microjand Small Enterprises 40.86 7.32
b) Total outstanding due of creditans other than micro enterprisas 1765 43340
and small enterprises
() Other financial liabilities 22 68.47 146.09
(b) Other Currant Liabilities 23 47.64 54.02
(c) Provisions 24 0.70 1.70
Total Current Liabilities 695.43 2,579.60
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,768.95 3,62474

Summary of Significant accounting policies, accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The accompanying notes refarred to abave form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Boa
Spur Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

@ —

Abhishek Munjal
{Director)
DIN: 05355274

(Partner)
M.No, DES988

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30.04.2024

uoin: LU SFILER K Manish Sharma Sakshi Dureja
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Pan No. : BZEPS9337N M. No. A70710

Date: 30.04.2024 Date: 30.04.2024




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVAT
CIN - U35990HR2014PTCO74086
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR T

E LIMITED

HE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

[l amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

s Nokes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{I) REVENUES:
{a) Revenue from Operations i5 1,291.58 156622
(b) Otherincome 26 mn 5313
Total Revenues (1) 1,295.32 161935
(1) EXPENSES:
(a) Costof Raw Materials Consumed 27 911.32 379.98
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 28 30,08 1,123.85
(€] Changesin inventories of Stock in Trade 194 142.69 34.00
() Changes in Inventaries of finished goods & work in progress 298 41.67 (71.40)
(e) Employee Benefits Expenses 30 144.62 209.91
(f) Finance Costs 31 251.11 14436
{g) Depreciation and Amortization Bxpenses 32 119.55 72.13
(h}) Other Expenses i3 162.67 183.76
Total Expenses (I} 1,803.71 2,076.64
(1) Profit before exceptional items and tax (I=11} (508.39) (457.28)
(IV) Exceptional Items - -
(V] Profit Before Tax (I1I-IV) (508.39) (457.28)
(VI) Tax Expenses: 36
(a) Current Tax - .
(b) Deferred tax 364 18.03 19.15
Total Tax Expense (V1) 28.03 29.15
{vn) Profit for the year (V-vi) {536.42) (486.44)
(vil) Other Comprehensive Income
{A) (i} 1tems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
(a) Re-measurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans 34 {2.55) 211
{ii} Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = -
(B} (i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
(a) Met movement in effective portion of cash flow hedge reserve - -
(i) Incame tax an items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = *
(b) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of a foreign - -
aperation
s Other Comprehensive Income (Vill) (2.55) 21
(IX) Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (VIHVII) {533.87) (488.54)
(Vill) Earnings Per Equity Shares : (face value INR 10 per share) 35
1} Basic (amount in INR) (1.74) (4.864.35)
2}  Diluted {amount in INR} (1,74) {4,864.35)

Summary of Significant accounting policies, accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The accompanying notes referred to above form anintegral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date
For BD Bansal & Co.
Chartgrad Accountants

()

CHARTERE

H\FRN-006621
(Partner)
M.No. 089988

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30.04.2024

UDIN: 2 4 0 e99pe MEL“_[L

ACCOUNTANT:

For and on beh

Spur Technologies Pvt, Ltd,

@-—-—-—‘-F“/

Abhishek Munjal

{Directar)
DIN: 05355274

Manish Sharma

Chief Financia

alf of the Board

| Officer

Pan Mo. : BZEPS9337N
Date: 30.04.2024

/

Sakshi Dureja
Company Secretary
M. No. A70710

Date: 30.04.2024




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED I

VARCH 31,2024

|All smountsin ¥ Lakh's

unless stated athanyise)

Notes :

(1l Dperating Activities
Arofit Batora Tax 1508.39| 457 28]
Profit Before Tax {508.39} (457 28)
Adjustments for Non-Cash itams -
Dapraciaton and Amartization Expenses 11985 7213
Dafined Benefit Plang Charges to OC| 2:55 {2.11)
Faes fer Increase in Authansed Share Capital {26.25)
Stamp Duty on lssue of Shares {3.08)
|Profitl/Loss on Sale of Assats (Net) {0.08) =
Finance Cost 25111 14438
Ititerest income [0.56]) |1.08)
Operating profit before working capital adjustments {165.16) {243.96)
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes -
lIncrease)/Decrease in Other Non Cufrent Assets [1.04) 273.84
(increase)/Dacreasa in Trade Recevables §7.12 20.30)
[Increase)/Decreaze in Dthar Recevables 598 (72.82)
|Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 25187 1180.52)
|ncrease/{Dacreasa) in Trada and Othar Payables {372.21) B85.42
Increase/(Dacreasa) in Payables and Provisions {3135} 1105:46)
Cash generated from operations (304.77) (263.70)
Taxes|Paid)/Recalved (Net of TDSETCS)
Net cash flow from Operating Activities (1) (304.77) (263.70)
(1] Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & |ntangible 1226.95) 11.708.09}
Sale of Property. Plant and Equipment & Intangitle 544 -
Interest recaived 0.56 1.06
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (11) (220.95) | |1.,7°?,€_I§u
() Financing Activities
Proceeds from isaus of Equity Share Capital 3,030.00 =
Proceeds from Long-Term Barrowings [357.89) 60366 |
Proceeds from Lease Liabilities (130.54) 27278
Praceeds/( Repayment) from Short-term Borrowings|Net) {1,438.65) 267 69
Interest and Financial Charges [251.11) |144 .36}
Net cash flow from Financing Activities (111} 89181 1,629.75
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash'ﬁnﬁm [E+1i+I01) 366.09 (340.98)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Beginning of the Year (4] - 34098
Cash and cash equivalents as at the End of the Year  (B) 356.08 -
Net [(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Sﬂwﬂnﬂ (8-A) 366.09 1340.98

'al The Cash Flow Statement has bean prepared in accordance with 'indiract method' as set out in Ind AS - 7 - 'Statemant of Cash Flows', as notified undar section 133
of Companies Act; 2013 read with relevant rules issueg thersunder

b) Disclosure as required in terms of tolnd AS 7" of Cash Flows".
t March
Particulars A;: 20;:: Cash Flows Non Cash Changes  As at March 31, 2024
Non Current Boreowings 1,103.66 {387.89) - 735.77
Current Borrowings 1,806.54 (1,438.65) - 367.82
Closing balance of Loan 2,910.20 :1&06.5&} 1,103.66
Particulars AsatMarch  CohFiows  NonCashChanges  AsatMarch 31,2023
31,2022
Non Current Bormowings 500.00 603 .56 110386
Current Borrowings 1,000.00 806.54 1,806.54
Closing baiance of Loan 1,500.00 1,410.20 = 2,910.20 |

Summary of Significant accaunting policies, accounting judgemants, estimates and assumptions
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone ﬂnqncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

"Spur Technologies Private limited (formerly known as Plus Drive International Private
Limited), ‘the Company’ was incorporated in India on March 24, 2014 under the Companies
Act, 1956, vide Current Registration Number U35990HR2014PTC074086. The Registered
Office of the Company is situated at§ 2A -1001, 10th Floor, Two Horizon Centre, Sector - 43,
DLF Phase - V, Gurugram, Haryana -122002.

The Company is engaged in the bL'Lsiness of manufacturing, distribution, marketing, selling
and exporting of bicycle parts, related components, ancillary products and services, cycles,
tricycles and carriages of all kinds and of all articles and things used for the manufacture,
maintenance and working thereof, to buy, repair, alter and deal in apparatus, machinery
materials and articles of all kinds wblch shall be capable of being used for the purpose of any
business herein mentioned or likely to be required by customers of any such business, as
authorized under the objects clause of its memorandum of association. Further the company

is also exploring and is working towards expansion of its pusiness in Auto Parts.

pursuant to purchase of 100% stak{e of the Company from Hero Cycles Limited, the company
became wholly owned subsidiary of Hero Motors Limited with effect from November 29, 2023.
The standalone Ind AS financlal s;tatements were approved for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 30t April 2024

2. Material Accounting policies: |

2.1 Basis of Preparation and prﬁasentatinn

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind |AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 20 13 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR and all values are
rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements provide comparative information in respect of
the previous year.

Basis of measurement i

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis,

except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as

required under relevant Ind AS.

g Certain financial asset!s and liabilities are measured at fair value (Refer accounting
policy regarding finandial instruments in Note 2.2 n.)

- Defined benefit plans- plan assets are measured at fair value

[ CHARTERED )
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.2

summary of Material accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Held for primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets aré dassified as non-current. A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held for primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

£ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment (*PPE")
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition or construction which includes
capitalised finance costs less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use. The cost
of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, if the recognition criteria is met. If significant
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Recognition criteria

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if and only
if,

a) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity, and
b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(@)
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their
intended use at the reporting date. Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding
at each Balance sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and its cost can be
measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on items of PPE is proyided as per rates corresponding to the useful life
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 read with related amendments. The
estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated
useful life prescribed under Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013 with the following
exception:
- Leasehold land & Leasehold improvement has been amortised over the |lease term.
- Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Useful life considered for calculation for various assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Building 30-60 years
Plant & Machinery 08 to 30 years
Furniture & Fixture 3 to 10 years
Office Equipment’s ] 3 to b years
Computer 3 to 6 years

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and
management estimate, depreciates tools included in plant and equipment over estimated
useful lives of 8 and 30 years which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the
date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

c. Intangible assets
Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Cost of
an item of Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use. After
initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and these are assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. The
amortisation method, residual value and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed
annually and adjusted as necessary.

Specialized software are amortized over a period of 3 years or license period whichever is
later.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal.

d. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing
for obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The cost of various
components of inventory is determined as follows; -

Raw Material The cost of raw materials &components, stores & spares, and
other traded items includes duties, taxes net of
recoverable taxes,wherever applicable, and other expenses
incurred to bring the inventories to their present




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

location and condition .The cost is arrived on the basis
of weighted moving average method.

Finished Goods The cost of finished goods Includes material cost plus
appropriate share of overheads. Finished Goods are
Valued at Cost or NRV whichever is lower.

Traded Goods The cost of land traded items) is valued at cost on the
basis of specific identfication method

Serap Net realisable value.

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-
progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are
not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is
estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
e. Retirement and other employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid e.g., salaries and wages and bonus etc., if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
employee provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (‘ESI’) to Government
administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company'’s contribution is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has
been entrusted to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC'). The Company's net

@




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined benefit liability, taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain
or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

c) Short term and other long term employee benefits :

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange of services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the
employee renders the services. These benefits include salaries, wages, performance
incentives and compensated absences.

The liability in respect of accumulated compensated absences is provided for on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year

in which they occur.
d) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the time of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount
is recognised as finance cost. Expected future losses are not provided for.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

[ CHARTERED
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

. by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific
current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities; and

. as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

f. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not
warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are
recognised when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not
a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

g. Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties
for completion of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and
commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

h. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangement
because it typically controls goods or services before transferring them to the customers,
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as
follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax.
Transaction price is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the
estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Also, in determining the transaction price for the
sale of products, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence
of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to
the customer (if any).

As per Ind AS 115, the Company determines whether there is a significant financing
component in its contracts. However, the Company has decided to use practical expedient
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

provided in Ind AS 115 and not to adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing components in the contracts, where the Company expects,
at contract inception that the period of completion of contract terms are one year or less.
Therefore, for short-term advances, the company does not account for a financing
component. No long-term advances from customers are generally received by the
Company.

Sales-related warranties associated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they
serve as an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.
Accordingly, the Company accounts for warranties in accordance with Ind AS 37.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography.
Sale of services

The Company recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of performance
obligation towards rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are
rendered in accordance with the specific terms of contracts with customers. The Company’s
performance obligation is limited to providing resources required for these services

Export benefits

Export Incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as
per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where
there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export
proceeds.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Company presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the
year ended 31 March, 2024 by type of goods and services and timing of revenue
recognition. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by industry,
market and other economic factors .

Contract balances

Trade Receivable

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in section of Financial instruments - initial
recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever
is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

i. Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is accrued on a time basis and recognised using the effective
interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

s the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company
is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

j. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction
of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as a part of cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.
k. Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or an item recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity). Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns witb respect
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts
better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and In respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and In respect of deductible
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same
forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management

reports.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax liabilities and assets and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authorities.

Sales/value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurrin, enses
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Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST

paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

I. Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as
defined under Ind AS 116: '

Company as a lessee

The Company’s |ease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which itis a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. %

Lease arrangements may include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities may include these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value |less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
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lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates pertaining to
the company. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset ha\ﬁ:e been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow activities.

m. Financial instruments
|
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
|

Financial assets ,
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase q‘r sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement .
For purposes of subsequent mea$urernent, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Debt instruments at amortised cost
. Debt instruments at fair v lue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
. Debt instruments, derlvati'{res and equity instruments at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) [
. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) r
Debt instruments at amortised cost
|
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to 'hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
contractual terms of the asset \give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and 1nter§est (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimat d future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the
amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
|

Debt instrument at FVOCI |

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is
achieved both by collecting co \tractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the
asset’s contractual cash flows ;represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
| -
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method. |

Debt instrument at FVPL |

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is dassified as at
FVPL. In addition, at initial recogniltion, the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a
debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL.
However, such adoption is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within| the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments .
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all other

equity instruments, the Company! may make an irrevocable adoption to present in other

comprehensive income subsequeht changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
adoption on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial

recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to dassify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.
Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statenpent of Profit and Loss.

|
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset Is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

F significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

3 the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company
would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation; or i

S the disappearance of at:t‘jveI market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allbwances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses, except for the following, pvh!ch are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:
|

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the ﬁnancl}at instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition. ‘ SaAs
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone ﬁna'ncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit |osses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the
maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company
considers reasonable and suppoﬁtable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash
flow due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the
Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet Loss allowance
for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. ;

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Company determines that the debtors do not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company’s R'rocedure for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial asisets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of

similar financial assets) is priﬁnarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's

balance sheet) when: |

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

5 The Company has transfq'rred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a 'i‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arr!*angement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks anp rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that czlase, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classiﬁed,éat initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recogn'sed initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instruments. |

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two
categories: '

. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

. Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it Is a
derivative or it is designated as .uch on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognised in Statement of Proﬂ? and Loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expen$e and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial Iiapllities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instru mefnts

The Company uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge its currency
and interest risk etc. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a dérivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Derivatjves are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

n. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial ass?ts other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped
together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company
of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs. |

The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use
and fair value less cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recogniseq whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Anilmpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
o. Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

p. Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value. |
q. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a nbn—cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash ﬂowsf. Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash
flows into operating, investing ahd financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities
is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of—
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a) changes during the periodiln operating receivables and payables transactions of a
non-cash nature; |

b) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains
and losses; and 5

c) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

r. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding
0CI) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are galculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income relating to thd dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless ;they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.”

s. Foreign Currency Transaction and translations

The functional currency and puf*esentatton currency of the company is Indian Rupee.
Functional currency of the Company and foreign operations has been determined based
on the primary economic envlrc}nment in which the Company and its foreign operations
operate considering the curr\encY in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

Initial recognition

Transactions denominated in fq!:reigri currencies are accounted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign curréncies are restated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary items denominated IP foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currenc’es are carried at historical cost.

Treatment of exchange diffé;rences

Exchange differences on mone!p:ary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included In the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those | foreign
currency borrowings. i ' 5.4
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23

t. Fair value measurement ‘

A number of the Company’s accoq!.mting policies and disclosures require measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an
established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This includes
the top management division which is responsible for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, is used to measure fair values, then the top management division assesses
the evidence obtained from the thlli'd parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into dif'ferent levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (uﬂadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities. f

# Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices) ’

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) '

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which;the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in
preparing these standalone finangial statements is included in the respective notes.

u. Research & development co#ts

Research and development costs that are in nature of tangible assets and are expected to
generate probable future economic benefits are capitalised as tangible assets. Revenue
expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of profit and loss
in the year in which it is incurred.

v. Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary
activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the Company for the period, the nature and amount of such material
items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

|

Changes in accounting policle$ and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2024 to amend the following Ind AS which are
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2.4

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company applied for
the first-time these amendments,

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes
in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities
use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's stand alone financial statements.
ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures, |

The amendments have had an impact on the Company'’s disclosures of accounting policies,
but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s
financial statements.

iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
- Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scqf:upe of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12,
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result
of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in
relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets.
Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind
AS 12,there is no impact in the 'balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening
retained earnings as at 1 April 2022.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind
AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind
AS 34. :

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates couﬂd result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
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revision affects only that period, qr in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements: i

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount
and timing of revenue from contracts with customers, such as identifying performance
obligations in a bundled sales transactions, wherein, the Company sell goods,
transportation and warranty services bundled together with sales of goods. The Company
allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basis on its relative standalone
prices. -

Expected credit losses on ﬁnahclal assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Company’s history of collections, ‘customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Estimates and
judgements are continually evalmjated. They are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determining lease term
|

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an oiption to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised. The Company has some property lease arrangements with its
holding company that include option to terminate the contract by either party at any time
by giving advance notice. The Company applied judgment in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain for both the parties to terminate the property lease contract before the
lease term. It considered all the factors that create economic incentive for the parties to
continue with lease or terminate including alternatives available for the office lease, use
of underlying property, leasehold improvements made and accordingly determined |ease

term. [

The lease term is reassessed If an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the
Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable
certainty is only revised if a siinﬁcant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting dd:ate that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amo¢nts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial s;l:atements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
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assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur,

useful life of assets of (Property, plant and equipment)

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The
useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
is based on a DCF model. It do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not
yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to property, plant
and equipment recognised by the Company.

Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims
against the Company, including legal and other claims. By virtue of their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail
to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events.

Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment.

Estimation of Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In
assessing the probability the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable
temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies. GhNS4 2




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

1.00

MARCH 31,2024

Asat

March 31, 2023
1.00

in Equity Share
juring 2022-23

(All amounts in ¥ Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Changes in Equity Share Capital during
2023-24

3,080.00

As at
March 31, 2024
3,081.00

Particulars

Retair

Reserve & Surplus

ed Earnings General Reserve

Other Comprehensive Income {OCH)

Items that will not be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss

Re-measurement of the net defined
benefit plans

As at April 1, 2022 235.62 (0.09) 235.54
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (486.44) - (486.44)
Other Camprehensive Income for the Year - (2.11) {2.11)
As at March 31, 2023 {250.81) = (2.19) (253.00
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (536.42) (536.42)
Fees for Increase in Authorised Share Capital (26.25) (26.25)
Stamp Duty on Issue of Shares (3.08) (3.08)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - 2.55 2.55
As at March 31, 2024 (816.56) - 0.36 (816.20)

For Description of the purspose of each reserve within equity,ref
The accompanying notes referred to above form an intagral par
As per our repart of even date

For BD Bansal & Co.
Chagtered Accountants

(Ca)
CHARTERED \ O
ACCOUNTANTS|
FRN-000621N /4

Anil Kumar Gupta
(Partner}

M.No. 089988
UbDin: 2uod 99 ¢
Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30.04.2024
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er note 14 of these financial statements

t of the standalone financial statements

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directq
Spur Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

Abhishek Munjal
(Director)
DIN: 05355174

Manish Sharma

Chief Financial Officer
Pan No. : BZEPS9337N
Date: 30.04.2024

Sakshi Dureja
Company Secretary
M. No. A70710
Date: 30.04.2024
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts in T Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Mote - 5 Non-Current Financial Assets : Investments

As at As at

tainitis Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023

(1) Quoted Instruments (valued at fair value through OC1)
InShares =
Total (1) | : -
(1) Unquoted Instruments (Valued at Cosi!]
In Shares
- Ludhiana Advanced Centre For Cycle Technology 5.00 5.00
50,000 equity shares (March 31, 2023 50,000) of INR 10 each fully paid up
- Others
Total (I1) | 5.00 5.00
Aggregate book value of Unquoted fnv'Eslrnems 5.00 5.00
Aggregate fair value Of Unguotad Investments = -
Total (1+11) | 5.00 5.00

Note - 6A Current Tax Assets

As at As at
Mar 31,2024  March 31,2023

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Good |
(A} Advance Income Tax | 1.65 6.23
(Net of provision of Nil (March 31, 2023 : Nil)

Total | 1.65 6.23

Note - 7 Other MNon-Current Assets

As at As at
Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Good |
(A} Capital Advances | 31.20 30.60
(B) Balances with Government Authorities

- Income Tax Refundable (AY 20-2]1) 3.46 3.17
{C) Others |

- Prepaid expenses | 0.15
Total | 34.81 33.78

Note - 8 Inventories

(Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value)

g As at As at
Farticulars

Mar 31,2024  March 31,2023
(A} Finished Goods 29.73 87.35
(B) Raw Materials 67.67 323.96

(C} Traded Goods £3.46 -
(D) Stores & Spares | 7.78 6.25
(E) Scrap 0.15 3.12
Total | 168.80 420.67

Note - 9 Current Financial Assets : Trade Recejvables

- As at As at
Farticulars

Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023

(1) Secured, Considered Good - -

(1) Unsecured, Considered Good :
- Related Parties | 84.66 103.98
- Others 1.27 43.50

(1) Unsecured, Considered Doubtful - Others
- Related Parties |

Others 7.36 5.56

Less : Allowance for doubtful debts | [7.36) -
Total 85.93 153.05

CHARTERED
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{All amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Note - 10 Current Financial Assets : Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at As at
Mar 31,2024  March 31,2023

Particulars

(4] Balance with Banks
- in Current Accounts 166.09
(B) Cash in hand | - -
Total | 366.09 |
Note |
a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalent are same given above.

b) The deposits maintained by the company with Banks comprise of the time deposits which may be withdrawn by
the company at any peint of time withieut prior notice and are made of varying period depending upon the cash
requirements of the company and earn Interest at respective deposit rate.

Note - 11 Current Financial Assets : Other Financial Assets

As at As at
Mar 31,2024  March 31,2023

Farticulars

Unsecured, considered good unless specified
(&) Interest accrued but not due ' - -
(8] Others

Balance with Banks: |

- In Deposit Accounts (with remaining maturity of Less than twelve

months)* | 0.40 0.40
Security Deposits | 1.01 1.41
Other Receivables | 17.62 66.32
Total 19.03 68.13

* Lien is marked with Sales Tax Department at the time of VAT Registration

Note - 12 Other Current Assets

Particulars St ol
Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023

Unsecured, Considered Good
(A) Capital Advances |
(B) Balances with Government Authprities 237,95 206.44
[C) Others

- Export incentive receivablg 3.10

- Prepaid expenses 269

-Advances to Suppliers 8.10
Total | 282.52 234,82

Note - 13 Equity Share Capital

As at As at
Mar 31,2024 = March 31,2023

Particulars

Authorized Share Capital

50,000,000 Equity Shares % 10/- eac) 5,000.00 1,500.00
(Previous Year 15,000,000 Equity Shares of £10/- each)

Total | 5,000.00 1,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up |

Equity Share Capital : 3,08,10,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each 3,081.00 1.00
(Previous Year 10000 Equity Shares pf 10/- each)

Total 3,081.00 1.00

Additional Information
(A) Reconciliation of Equity Share Capital (In Numbers)

As at As at

Particulars

Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add : Shares issued during the year | 3,08,00,000 -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,08,10,000 10,000

{B) Terms/ rights attached to equity shfares:
The Company has only one class of anuity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
to one vote per share and will rank pari passu with each ather in all respect. In the event of liquidation of the company, the
holders of equity shares will be antitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders The Com
not paid any dividend during the year. [~ N
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mate - 15 Non Current Financial Liabiliti

Particulars

(1) SECURED - CLASSIFIED AT AMORTISED COST
(a) Term Loan from Bank

Less : Current Maturities of Long Term Borfowings
Amount disclosed under other financial liabilities as ‘Current Borrowings' (refer
note 19}

(All amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Asat
Mar 31,2024

1.103.66
1,103.66

367.89

As at
March 31,2023

1.47155
1,471.55

36789 |

Total

735.77

| 1,103.66 |

Additional information:

The Term loan is secured by first Pari-Passu Exclusive charge on the entire Fixed Assets, both movable and immovable, Present and

Future,
(1) Repayment Terms:

Type of laan

Term Loan - Axis Bank Limited

Amount (including
current maturities)

1,103.66

Amount (including
current maturities)

1,471.55

i) Terms of Repayment & Maturities
- 4 Years. (Repayment of loan in Rs, 91;?_186 /- Instalmeant every Quarter
end from June'23 ) |
il} Terms of Repayment & Maturities
- The rate of Interest agreed as REPO Rate + 3.15 %.

- As on 31.03.24 Rate of Interast {5 9.65 ‘94
|

Note - 16 Non Current Financial Liabilities- Lease Liabilities

Particulars

Lease Liabilities
(A} Non- Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities

As at
Mar 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

Total

5 = As at As at
Particulars
Mar 31,2029 March 31,2023
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Provision for Gratuity 9.9¢ 16,71
- Provision for compensated absences 5.90 5.49 |
Total 15.86 2220 |

Note - 18 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Particulars

Deferred Tax Liability |
(A)  Deferred Tax Liability

As at
Mar 31,2024

57.09

As at
March 31,2023

29.06

Total

57.09

29.06 |

Note - 19 Current Financial Liabilities - Berrowings

Particulars

Asat
Mar 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

(1) Secured - Classified at amortised cost |
(A) Cash Credit | c 18B.65
(D} Current Maturities of Long Term Barrcwingi. 367.89 367.89
(1) Unsecured - Classified at amortised cost |
[A) Loan from Relatad Parties 1,250.00
Total 367.89 1,806.54

Additional information:
a) Working capital Loans from Axis Bank is secured
Future).

against first Pari-Passu Exclusive charge on entire current assets of company (Present &

&
Q[ CHARTERED




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amauntsin ¥ Laki's uniess stated otherwise)
Nate - 20 Current Financial Liabilities - Lease Liabilities
As at As at
Mar 31,2020 March 31,2023

Particulars

Lease Liabilities

(A Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities

Total

Note - 21 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payable

Particulars a5
Mar 31,2024 March 31,2023
Sundry Creditor for goods and services - Classified at amortised cost
(A} Total Qurstanding dues of Micro and Small snterprises | 40.86 732
{8) Total Qutstanding dues of Craditors othey than Micrs and Small antarprises | 704 B6.87
(C] Due to Related Partiey 0,61 346 52
[ Totar | 68.51 _440.72 |
|
3] Trade Payables ageing schedule as at Mar 31, 2024: |
| Ou g for f ing periods from due date of payment =
Particulars Morethan | Unbilled
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years | dues Total
MSME | 40,86 4086
Others | 2.07 - 1558 27.65
| |Disputed dues — MSME -
Disputed dues — Others - - - |
Total 42.93 = .| 7558 - | 5 58,51
b} Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023: |
[ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment |
Particulars ‘ Mare than Unbilled |
| Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3 years dues Total
[ |MSME | 2.00 532 | 7.32
() |others | 218,08 189.72 2558 | | : 433,90
{11} |Disputed dues — MSME | 2 . -
(iv) |Disputed dues — Others 1 s : | . : +
Total | 220.08 155.05 25.58 | = : s 240.72

rrent Financial Liabllities - Other financial labilit

As
Mar 31,2 March 31,2023

Farticulars

Other Current Financial Liability - Classified at amortised cost
(A}

Security deposit

(B} Interest sccruad but not due on borrowings |

{C) Interest accruad snd due on harrswings | - 125.11
(D) Leave Encashment Payahie | - -
(E} Empioyes related payable | 11.68 15.85
{F)_Creditors for capital goods | 56,79 5.13
Total [ 68.47 146,09

Jther Current Liabilities
Asat
March 31,2023

Particulars

(A} Deferred Government Grant

(B) Advances from Customers | 2210
(€} Statutory Dues -
GST |
Incame Tax (TDS) 5.63 1362
ESY, PF & Others | 209 4.02
Labour Welfare Fund Pavable | 0.06 p.07
Professional Tax Payahle | o.p2 024
(D) Expenses Payable | 17.67 3607
| .
To | 4764 54.02

Note . 24 Provisions

As at
Miar 31,2024

Particulars

(4] Provision for employes benefits
- Provision for Gratuity | 01& 1.14

Provision for compensated absences 0.56 0.56

Tatal ore 178




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 25 Revenue from Operations

Particulars

2023-24

(All amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

2022-23

(1) Sales of Products

(A) Sales of Goads - Manufacturing 1,122.82 362.38

(B) Sales of Goods - Trading 156.44 1,186.88

(C) Sale of Service -
Sub-Total (1) 1,279.26 1,549.25

(l) Other Operating Revenue

(C} Scrap Sale 12.34 16.70

(D) Export Incentive 0.27

(E) Others - -
Sub-Total (Il 12.34 16.96

1,291.59 1,566.22

Total (Revenue from Operations) {I-b‘lj

- 26 Other Income

Particulars

(A} Interest Income
- On bank deposits
- Others(Interest on IT Refund)
{8} Profit on sale of Property Plant Equiplénent
(C) Royalty Income
(D) Excess Provision/ Liabilities Written Back
(E] Misc. Income others |

2022-23

Total | 3.72
Note - 27 Cost of Raw Material Consumed
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(A)  Inventory at the beginning of the year| 133.76 -
(B] Add: Purchases 84524 513.74
9?9.0_0 513.74
(C)  Less: Inventory at the end of the year 67.67 133.76
Total ( A+B-C) | 911.32 379.98
Note - 28 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(A} Inventory at the beginning of the year| 206.15 240,15
(B) Add: Purchases 30.08 1,123.89
| 236.23 1,364.04
[C) Less: Inventory at the end of the year | 63.46 206.15
Total ( A+B-C) 172.76 1,157.89

Note - 29A Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Particulars

2023-24

2022-23

(A) Opening Stock
Stock in Trade 206.15 240.15
Sub-Total (A) 206.15 240.15
(B) Closing Stock
- Stockin Trade 63.46 206.15
Sub-Total (B) 63.46 206.15
Total (A-B) 142.69 34.00




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in  Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Note - 29B Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(A) Opening Stock
Finished Goods 66.76
- Finished Goods-in-transit -
- Work-in-Progress _ 4.64
Sub-Total (A) ' 71.40 -
(B8) Closing Stock
Finished Goods | 29.73 66.76
- Finished Goods-in-transit - -
Work-in-Progress - 4.64
Sub-Total (B) | 29.73 71.40
Total (A-B) 41.67 (71.40)

Note - 30 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(A) Salaries, Wages and Allowances . 110.50 166.28
(B) Gratuity expense . 5.56 4.26
(C) Compensated absences 3.69 3.24
(B) Contribution to PF, ESI and other Funds 15.98 19.24
(C) Staff Welfare Expenses 8.89 16.88
Total [ 144.62 209.91

Note - 31 Finance Cost

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(A) Interest Expenses
- Term Loan Interest ' 126.96 41.06
- Working Capital Interest ' 17.27 6.78
- 1CD Interest ' 87.18 65.36
(B) Other borrowing cost | 0.24 0.27
(C) Interest on lease liability 19.46 30.90
Total 251.11 144.36

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
(B) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer|note 4) 6.86 4.68
(C) Amortisation of Right of use assets (Refer Note 3) 11.97 11.97
Total | 119.55 72.13

[9’\'
HARTERED |-
CCOUNTANTS
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 33 Other Expenses

(All amounts in X Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

(A) Power & Fuel 9.01 3.73
{B) Packing Material Consumed 12.20 2,60
(C) Consumption Of Stores & Spares 11.15 16.49
(D) Contract Labour Charges 23.41 17.80
(E) Payment to Auditors

- Statutory Audit 2.00 2.00

- Tax Audit 0.50 0.50

- Others Matters z -
{F) Amount Written Off 7.78 0.04
(G) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses' - -
(H) Bank Charges 523 1.54
(I) Insurance Expenses 2.45 2.85
(J) Legal and Professional Expenses 5.29 3.32
(K) Rates & Taxes 0.59 3.73
(L) Rent 0.67 1.54
(M) Repair & Maintenance

- Buildings 0.01 0.00

- Plant & Machinery 2.29 1.14

- Others | 51.03 47.32
(N) Travelling & Conveyance 1.26 14.81
(O) Loss on sale/write off of PPE 0.01 -
(P) Freight Expenses 3.81 34.62
(Q) Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss(net) | 0.18 0.66
(R) Miscellaneous expenses ' 23.79 29.06

Total | 162.67 183.76

Note - 34 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars
(A} Remeasurement impact for actuarial gainjor loss
(B) Tax on above

2023-24

[2.55)

2022-23

(2.55)

2.11

Total |

Note - 35 Earnings Per Share [EPS)

The Company's earnings per share is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholder's of the Company. Basic
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars
Earning attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
Calculation of Weighted Average Number of Ec!|uity Shares
- Number of share at the beginning of the yearj
- Total equity shares outstanding at the end of Fhe year
- Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Basic Earnings Per Share (In %)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (In %)
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (In %)

2023-24

(536.42)

0.10
308.10
308.10

(1.74)
(1.74)
10.00

2022-23
(486.44)

0.10
0.10
0.10

(4,864.35)
(4,864.35)
10.00




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise)
Note - 36 Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

IParticulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Current tax expense:

Current year - -
Prior year Tax adjustment - :
Total current tax (A) 0.00 0.00

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities):

Current year origination and reversals of temporary difference 28.03 29.15
Prior year Tax adjustment - -

Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (B) 28.03 29.15
Total tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 28.03 29.15

(i) A numerical reconciliation between tax expense (income) and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
disclosing also the basis on which the applicable tax rate(s) is (are) computed

Note - 36A Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax: |

As at J \ As at
; Provided during
Particulars 01-Apr-23 31-Mar-24
the year

Deferred tax liability:

Related to Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 32.61 38.09 70.71
ROU Asset 27.74 29.84 57.58
Total deferred tax liability (A) 60.35 67.94 128.29
Deferred tax assets:

Business Losses ' 94.45 0.76 95.21
CA of Liabilty ' 6.98 (1.94) 5.04
Total deferred tax assets (B) 101.43 (1.17) 100.26
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (A - B) (41.08) 69.11 28.03

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority.

CHARTERED
%‘COU-’-T'\;-JTQ
% \FRN-000621 *




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts in T Lakh’s uniess stated otherwise)

Note - 37 Employee Benefits Disclosures
(i} Gratuity |

The Company has a defined banefit gratuity plan, Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed years of service. The scheme is unfunded.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass and
amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in relation to re-measurement gain or loss

Statement of Profit and Loss
Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the em
Particulars

loyee cost

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Expense
Past Service Cost -
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 5.56 4.26

Amount recognised in Other Camprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars 31-Mar-24
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year
Amount recognised in Other Cdmprehensive Income | {2.55) 211

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset/Liabilit

Particulars 31-Mar-24
Present Value of Unfunded Defined Benefit Obligation
[Plan Liability | | 10.10] 17.85

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 17.85 £.13
Current Service Cost | 4.15 3.54
Interest Cost ' 141 0.72
Past 5ervice Cost ' % %
Acquistion/Business '

Combination/Divestiture ] s
Benefits Paid | 10,75 381
Actuarial (gains)/losses an obligation (2.55) 2,11
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 10.10 17.85

plans are shown below:
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

rincipal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s
Particulars

The

Discount Rate
Increase in Compensation Cost

Discount rate Future salary increases
y L 1% decrease . L 1% decrease
Sensitivity level | increase increase
Impact on defined benefiinblig.ation II,O?,SES.OOJ[ 1,27,372.00 1,26,669.00 f {1,09,544.00)

Particulars 31-Mar-23

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
1% 1% ;
1% decrease 1% decrease
Sensitivity level | increase increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation 142,810.00” 49,728.00 50,652.00 I {44,550.00)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the Impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts in X Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Demographic Assumption
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
i) Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
ii) Mortality rates inclusive of provision [100% of IALM  |100% of IALM
for disability ** (2012 - 14) (2012 -14)
iii) Withdrawal Rate 9.00% 9.00%

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Gratuity
Year -2024 ‘ - 1.18
Year -2025 0.15 10.32
Year -2026 0.26 0.16
Year -2027 0.34 0.24
Year -2028 0.68 0.61
Year -2029 0.88 -
Year -2030 to 2034 | 4.45 4.18

Total 6.76 16.69

(i) Leave Encashment
Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the employee cost
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Service Cost 2.14 2.03
Net Interest Expense | 0.50 0.48
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 2.64 2.51
Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset/Liability
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 6.45 6.05
Plan Liability ' 6.45 6.05

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 6.05 5.75
Current Service Cost I 2.14 2.03
Interest Cost 0.50 0.48
Acquisition/Business Combination /Divestiture - 1.31
Benefits Paid ' 3.28 4.25
Actuarial (gains)/losses on nbiigationf 1.04 0.74
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation | 6.45 6.05

Discount Rate

Increase in Compensation Cost

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Allamounts in X Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

Leave Encashment Plan

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
1% 1%
—_ : 1% decrease g 1% decrease
Sensitivity level . increase increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation (46,295.00) 52,406.00 51,859.00 (45,401.00)

31-Mar-23
Discount rate

31-Mar-23
Future salary increases

Particulars

Assumptions

1% 1%
. . 1% decrease ) 1% decrease
Sensitivity level . increase increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation . (42,810.00) 49,728.00 50,652.00 (44,550.00)

The sencitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Demographic Assumption

i) Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision| [100% of IALM  |100% of IALM
for disability ** (2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)
iii) Withdrawal Rate 9.00% 9.00%
ROU Assets :- '

The Company has taken Industrial Land on| Lease for an amount of Rs. 4.50 Cr for a period of 33 Years. The company has
complied with the provision of INDAS and Recognised ROU Asset and Lease Liability on the same. ROU Asset is amortised
on yearly basis for Rs. 11.97 Lakhs

Note - 39 Commitment and Contingencies
(i) Commitments
(a) Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Capital Commitments ' 115.83 NIL

(i) Contingent liabilities:
There are no claims against the company hence no reporting is done under contingent liability




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEI\JTS

Note - 40 Segment Information

Basis for Segmentation | )

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, the Company is primarily engaged in a
business of manufacturing and trading of Cycle parts and has no other primary reportable segments. The Director of
the Company allocate the resourcfs and assess the performance of the Company, thus he is the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no
separate segment needs to be disclosed.

Information about geographical areas

As the Company operates in Indiaionly, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

Information about major customers
Revenue is derived from one majar customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's revenue as below

Customer 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23
Category A 697.84 869.55
Category B ' 567.35 655.37

Note - 41 Related Party Disclosures

(A) Name of related party where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not
Holding Company : Hero Motors Limited
(Acquired 100% stake from Hero Cycles Limited on November 29, 2023)

(B) Key Management Personnel IKMP]
Sh. Pawan Puri - Director (Non echuﬁve, Non Independent Director)
Sh. Amit Gupta - Director (Non executive, Non Independent Director)
Sh. Abhishek Munjal - Director (Non executive, Non Independent Director)
Sh. Nitin Kumar Saini - Manager (Appointed w.e.f Dec 30, 2023)
Sh. Manish Sharma - Chief Finandial Officer (Appointed w.e.f Dec 30, 2023)

Ms. Sakshi Dureja - Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f Dec 30, 2023)

(C) Entities where KMP has significant influence
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited
ZF Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited
HMC E-Valley Private Limited
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited
Hero Transmission Private Limiteﬁd
Hero Motors Thai Ltd.

Hewland Engineering Limited

HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
Firefox Bikes Private Limited

Hero PBG Cycles Private Limited

OMA Living Private Limited

Munjal Sales Corporation

Hero Cycles Group Private Limiteé:l
Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited
Munjal Light Metals Private Limited

UT Bikes Private Limited

Munijal Alternate Fuels Private Limited
Auma F & B Concepts Priavte Lirﬁited
Munjal Aviation Private Limited I

Q'f| CHARTERED



SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts in ¥ Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

(D) Fellow Subsidiaries
Hero Motors Thai Ltd.
Hewland Engineering Limited
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited

Transactions with related parties during the year

c e
Sumpdiary Entities where KMP has

Details of transactions Holding including Step- KMP Total

e significant influence
Down Subsidiaries

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 20 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

a. Purchase of Goods & Rendering of

Services®

Hero Motors Limited 57.06 1,303.70 57.06 1,303.70
Hero Cycles Limited 1.34 92.35 1.34 9235
HMC E-Valley Private Limited 91.86 59.47 91.86 59.47

b. Sale of Goods & Rendering of Services*

Hero Motors Limited 0.28 - 0.28

Hero Cycles Limited 631.73 931.14 631.73 931.14

HMC E-Valley Private Limited 781.58 732.85 781.58 732.85

HERQ EDU SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 0.06 0.06

Firefox Bikes Pvt. Ltd 2.16 2.16 -
Jc. Sale of Asset* 1 E i 1 i | i

Hero Motors Limited 6.27 i 6.27

d. Purchase of Asset*
Hero Motors Limited 14.81 14.81 -
Hero Cycles Limited 19.95 - 19.95

e. Cash Discount paid
Hero Cycles Limited 1.54 1.54

f. Advance Received
Hero Motors Limited 28.50 28.50

g. Loan Taken
Hero Motors Limited 250.00 - 250.00
Hero Cycles Limited 381.00 381.00

Bhagyoday Investments (P) Ltd - -




SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All arounts in % Lakh's unless stated otherwise}

h. Rent Paid* ]
Hero Motors Limited 0.40 1.42 - 0.40 1.42
Hero Cycles Limited 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
i. Reimi t Received

Hero Motors Limited 20 1.06 - 2.0 1.06
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited 4.00 4.00

j. Interest Paid

Hero Motors Limited 16.34 11.28 - 16.34 11.28
Hero Cycles Limited 29.44 45.00 29.44 45.00
|ehagyoday Investments (P) Ltd 41.40 45.00 41.40 45.00

k. Reimbursement Paid -

Hero Motors Limited 0.25 0.41 - 0.25 0.41
Hero Cycles Limited 3.83 4.69 3.83 4.69
HIMC E-Valley Private Limited 892 373 8.92 3.73

1. Employees Benfits Transferred - Received

Hero Motors Limited 8.21 =~ - - 8.21
m. Loan Repaid

Hera Motors Limited 250.00 250.00

Hero Cycles Limited 881.00 B81.00

Bhagyaday Investments (P) Ltd 500.00 500.00

n. Royalty Received*®
Hero Cycles Limited 5 - 3.53 53.79 3.53 53,79

o. Income Provision of PY Reverse in CY - 1 — i I
Hero Motors Limited 48.02 48.02

p. Share Capital Received
Hero Motors Limited 1,970.00 1,970.00 =
Hero Cycles Limited 1,110.00 1,110.00

q. Remuneration Paid
Manish Sharma 2.35 - 235 -
Nitin Kumar Saini 3.03 - 3.03 -

r. Reimbursement not in nature of Perqusite

Manish Sharma 0.29 - 0.29
Nitin Kumnar 5aini 0.33 - 0.33 =

s. Lease liability paid for ROU Asset
HMC E-Valley Private Limited 177.00 177.00 177.00 177.00

* Figures are inclusive of GST
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in T Lakh's unfess stated otherwise)

Note -43 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits, employee
liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The

Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also enters into derivative transactions.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash|flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exghange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency),

The company uses Forward Contracts to hedge its risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currencies and interest rate relating to foreign currency
liabilities, certain firm commitments and some forecasted transactions related to foreign currency trade. The use of Forward Contracts is governed by
Company’s overall strategy. The Company does not use for‘}vard Contracts for speculative purposes.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables

In case of trade receivables credit risk is due to delayed payments or default in payments. The Company considering business portfolio, customer credit
worthiness takes the 100% deposits in advance from its trade receivables. Therefore, in case of Company credit risk from trade receivables is very minimal
and to manage minimal risk, Company's management refgularly reviews the credit worthiness of its dealers, distributors etc. The Company's maximum
exposure due to credit risk from trade receivables is illustrated in note no. 11 for the balances outstanding at March 31, 2019 and March31, 2018,

Liquidity Risk

The Company manages its liquidity risk to maintain adequate net working capital by constantly managing projected cash flows. Beyond effective working
capital and cash management, the Company mitigates liquidity risk by contracting with financial institutions with respect to bank overdrafts or banking facility
agreements for efficient management of funds.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 3
months

Particulars On demand 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years

Year ended

31-Mar-24

Working Capital Borrowings | - - = - -

Term Loan 91.97 27592 735.77 . 1,103.66

Other Loan |- - - - -

- 91.97 275.92 735.77 - 1,103.66

Year ended

31-Mar-23

Working Capital Borrowings 188.65 - - 188.65

Term Loan |- 91.97 275.92 1,103.66 1,471.55

Other Loan 1,375.11 . 1,375.11
1,375.11 280.62 275.92 1,103.66 3,035.30
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SPUR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in X Lakh's unless stated otherwise)

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

- safeguard their ability to continue as a goin% concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholder's and benefits for
other stakeholder's, and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to redyce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sall assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
- Net Debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
- divided by Total ‘Equity’ (as shown in the bal?nce sheet)

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within the range of 2:1. The gearing ratios were as follows:
Particulars At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023

Net Debts }‘3?1%5? 2910.20
Total Equity 2264.80 -252.00
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.33 -11.55

Note - 46 Corporate Social Responsibility

The company is not required to spend any amaunt on CSR activities as the company is outside the preview of section 135 of the

Companies Act, 2013 during the year under coTsideration.

Note - 47 Funds Disclosure

- No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persc!n{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) I

- The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other pers:ons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on b'r_'half of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note - 48 Additional Disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule IIi:
(a) There are no transactions to report for Crypto Qurrency or Virtual Currency

(b) There are no Proceedings initited or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{c) There are no charges or Satisfaction of charges Lmhich are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

{(d) The company is not declared a willful defaulter by any bank or Fl's or any other lender.

(e} There are no transactions with any company struck off under section 248 of the Company's Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(f} No Revaluation of property,Plant and equipmedlt as no such revaluation has taken place during the year

(g) Ther are no Loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, directors, KMP's and other related parties either severally

or jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
[

The company has taken CC Facility from Axis Bank Ltd during the year. Monthly returns or statements of current assets filed with the
Banks are in agreements in books of Accounts.

(i} The company have devloped Factory Building on its Lease Land acquired from HMC Hive E Valley Private Limited and is sjanding as
immovable properties as on Balance Sheet date‘

(i) Daily backup of books & records is held and recc?rded in India

(h

For and on behalf of the Boar
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Abhishek Munjal

(Director) )
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Manish Sharma kshi Dureja

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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